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Request

The applicant requests Certificate of App10pr1ate consideration for the Elks
Club Building located at 139 E South Temple Street. The proposed project

includes the temoval of the front entrance element, alterations to the basement- -

level, and‘construction of an addition to the east side of the building. T he
applicant states the reason for the proposed changes are to bring the building up
to current safety and accessibility standards, make the building V1able for future
tenants, and to create a modern entrance.

Potential Motions

No final decision will be made by the Historic Landmark Commissien at this
meeting. The purpose of this discussion is to allow the applicant to present the
proposed project, to gain feedback and direction from the Commission, and to
provide an opportunity for the pubhc to comment. This staff report is to
provide information for d1scussmn
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Background

Project Description

As originally constructed in 1923, the Elks Club Bulldmg was a ﬁve st01y structure with a full basement. The
building was designed by Carl Scott and George Welsh who had worked for Utah’s famed architect, Richard
Kletting. As the largest club house built in Utah, it housed one of the largest non-Mormon clubs in the state.
The building is of a steel reinforced concrete construction and rectangular in plan. The exterior of the building
features a red striated brick finish with terra cotta details. The front fagade has changed little since its original
construction. Significant architectural details of the building include a symmetrical fagade that is seven bays
wide, arched bays with fanlight transoms, elks heads in the spandrel panels, keystones, a first story cornice band
with an engaged balustrade, a decorative stone retaining wall, and an arched tunnel entrance to the lower-level.

Various alterations, mostly to the interior of the building, have occurred over the years to accommodate new
uses. An additional floor was built on the roof over the southern portion of the building as well as toward the
rear of the building. A metal-framed glass enclosure two-stories in height was added to the lower portion of the
eastern exterior wall. The window treatment has also evolved overtime. Most windows are aluminum frame
and not original to the building. The arched window openings on both the west and east sides were once
bricked in to accommodate a theater. The brick infill was replaced with glass in 1982. In 1989, the windows on
the west elevation were again replaced and enlarged.
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The proposed project plans include upgrades to the structural, mechanical, and electrical systems. A new stair
and elevator core will provide access to all levels and allow for the removal of the exterior egress stair on the
west side of the building. The applicant proposes to replace the existing addition to the east side of the building
with a 30 foot wide addition that would provide an additional 3,900 square feet of floor space to each of the
existing six building levels. The proposed design of this addition is set back from the plane of the primary
facade and includes stone cladding with brick and stucco detailing. The addition would also assist with the
structural retrofit.

The applicant proposes to day-light the lower-level of the building to meet the needs of today’s tenants. The
proposed design includes grade changes to accommodate new window openings and a formal front entrance.
The existing masonry fagade would remain intact and the cladding of the new base would be limestone to match
the original stone base of the building., These improvements would also require the removal of the original
lower-level entry elements and site features.

Comments

Public Comment
No public comment regarding this application has been received.

Project Review

Zoning Considerations

The Historic Landmark Commission’s jurisdiction does not relate to the development requirements of the
Zoning Ordinance. All proposed work must comply with height, yard and bulk requirements of the D-1 zoning
district.

Analysis and Findings

Options
The Commission may wish to consider if there is any additional information the applicant should provide that
would assist the Commission in its consideration of the proposed project.

Findings

The applicable Zoning Ordinance standards and design guidelines are listed below to suggest ways that change
to historic buildings can be sensitively accomplished. An in depth review of the proposed project has not been
done at this time. However, staff has identified several issues for discussion below.

21A.34.020 H Historic Preservation Overlay District:

G. Standards for Certificate of Appropriateness for Alteration of a Landmark Site or Contributing Structure.
In considering an application for a certificate of appropriateness for alteration of a landmark site or contributing
structure, the historic landmark commission, or the planning director, for administrative decisions, shall find
that the project substantially complies with all of the following general standards that pertain to the application
and that the decision is in the best interest of the city:
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1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be used for a purpose that requires minimal change to the
defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment;

2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic materials or
alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided;

Design Standards for Site Features

1.1 Preserve historically significant features. These may include historic retaining walls,
irrigation ditches, gardens, driveways and walkways. Fences and street trees are also examples of
original site features that should be preserved. Sidewalks, parkways, planting strips, street trees
and street lighting are examples of historic streetscape elements that should be considered in all
civic projects.

1.8 Preserve the historic grading design of the site. Altering the overall appearance of the
historic grading is inappropriate. While some changes may be considered, these should remain
subordinate and the overall historic grading character shall be preserved.

Design Standards for Additions

8.1 Design an addition to a historic structure such that it will not destroy or obscure
historically important architectural features. For example, loss or alteration of architectural
details, cornices and eavelines should be avoided. :

8.4 Design a new addition to be recognized as a product of its own time. An addition shall be
made distinguishable from the historic building, while also remaining visually compatible with
these earlier features. A change in setbacks of the addition from the historic building, a subtle
change in material, or a differentiation between historic and more current styles are all
techniques that may be considered to help define a change from old to new construction.
Creating a jog in the foundation between the original building and the addition also may
establish a more sound structural design to resist earthquake damage, while helping to define it
as a later addition.

8.5 Design a new addition to preserve the established massing and orientation of the
historic building. For example, if the building historically had a horizontal emphasis, this
orientation shall be continued in the addition. -

8.6 Do not construct a new addition or alteration that will hinder one’s ability to interpret
the historic character of the building or structure. A new addition that creates an appearance
inconsistent with the historic character of the building is inappropriate. An alteration that seeks
to imply an earlier period than that of the building is inappropriate. In addition, an alteration that
seeks to imply an inaccurate variation on the historic style is inappropriate. An alteration that
covers historically significant features is inappropriate as well.

Ground Level Additions

8.14 Keep a new addition physically and visually subordinate to the historic building. The
addition shall be set back significantly from primary facades. A minimum setback of 10 feet is
recommended. The addition should be consistent with the scale and character of the historic
building or structure. Large additions should be separated from the historic building by using a
smaller connecting element to link the two.
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3. All sites, structures and objects shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations that have no
historical basis and which seek to create a false sense of history or architecture are not allowed;

Design Standards for Additions

8.4 Design a new addition to be recognized as a product of its own time. An addition shall be
made distinguishable from the historic building, while also remaining visually compatible with
these earlier features. A change in setbacks of the addition from the historic building, a subtle
change in material, or a differentiation between historic and more current styles are all
techniques that may be considered to help define a change from old to new construction.
Creating a jog in the foundation between the original building and the addition also may
establish a more sound structural design to resist earthquake damage, while helping to define it
as a later addition.

8.6 Do not construct a new addition or alteration that will hinder one’s ability to interpret
the historic character of the building or structure. A new addition that creates an appearance
inconsistent with the historic character of the building is inappropriate. An alteration that seeks
to imply an earlier period than that of the building is inappropriate. In addition, an alteration that
seeks to imply an inaccurate variation on the historic style is inappropriate. An alteration that
covers historically significant features is inappropriate as well.

4, Alterations or additions that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained and
preserved;

5. Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize a
historic property shall be preserved;

Design Standards for Additions

8.2 Design an addition to be compatible in size and scale with the main building. Set back
an addition from historically important primary facades in order to allow the original proportions
and character to remain prominent. Keep the addition visually subordinate to the historic
building. Ifit is necessary to design an addition that is taller than the historic building, set it
back substantially from significant facades and use a “connector” to link it.

8.7 When planning an addition to a building, preserve historic alignments that may exist on
the street. Some roof lines and porch eaves on historic buildings in the area may align at
approximately the same height. An addition shall not be placed in a location where these
relationships would be altered or obscured.

6. Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced wherever feasible. In the event
replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in composition, design,
texture and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on
accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or pictorial evidence rather than on
conjectural designs or the availability of different architectural elements from other structures or objects;

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not be
used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be discouraged when such
alterations and additions do not destroy significant cultural, historical, architectural or archaeological material,
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and such design is compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the property, neighborhood
or environment;

9. Additions or alterations to structures and objects shall be done in such a manner that if such additions or
alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the structure would be
unimpaired. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible in massing, size, scale
and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment;

Design Standards for Additions

8.3 Place an addition at the rear of a building or set it back from the front to minimize the
visual impact on the historic structure and to allow the original proportions and character
to remain prominent. Locating an addition at the front of a structure is inappropriate.

10. Certain building materials are prohibited including the following:

a. Vinyl or aluminum cladding when applied directly to an original or historic material, and
b. Any other imitation siding material designed to look like wood siding but fabricated from an imitation
material or materials;

11. Any new sign and any change in the appearance of any existing sign located on a landmark site or within the
H historic preservation overlay district, which is visible from any public way or open space shall be consistent
with the historic character of the landmark site or H historic preservation overlay district and shall comply with
the standards outlined in Part IV, Chapter 21A.46, Signs;

12. Additional design standards adopted by the historic landmark commission and city council.

Analysis

In order to provide information for discussion, staff has identified the following issues regarding the proposed
project:

1. A series of spaces between the street and building is typical of most historic property particularly
along historic South Temple Street. The progression of streetscape features is important because it
contributes strongly to the historic character of a site and creates a sense of visual continuity on the
block and within the historic district. Landscape features that are important in defining the historic
character of a building site may include fences, walkways, steps, landings, and porches, as well as
unique trees, bushes and topography.

In this case, staff views the historic progression of entry elements a significant character-defining
feature of the site that should be retained. Because the proposed alterations would cause the
removal of the lower-level entrance including the arched tunnel that leads to the basement level of
the building, two sets of exterior stairs over the top of the tunnel, a decorative retaining wall, and the
connecting walkway that leads to the first floor entrance, the project would be incompatible in form
and architectural detail with the historic character of the building, site, and streetscape.

2. The proposed alterations fail to make use of the basic principles recommended by the City’s design
guidelines to ensure that the essential form and integrity of contributing buildings will not be
adversely affected by new construction. Changing the grade adjacent to the front fagade of the
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building to allow development of a formerly below-grade area would drastically alter the historic
relationship between the building and its site and setting, and diminish the historic integrity of the
property and its context.

3. Although the new addition on the east side of the building will be set back from the plane of the
historic building and is clearly a contemporary design, a significant amount of original exterior
material and detail will be lost on what is now a very visible fagade.
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139 East SQuth Temple Projecti'Description

' Project Descrnphon

The 139 E. Building is located at 139 East on South Temple in dovvntovvn
Salt I_ake City. The existing building suffers from rapidly. deteriorating building
systems that aré out of date and not up to current building standards. Many
inappropriate repairs and additions have made over the years by various
owners that have only increased the current operational problems of building
systems. The proposed project plan is to upgrade the entire structural,
mechanical, and electrical systems for the existing building. In order for these
improvements to be feasible and function well a new (6) story addition is to be
attached to the east building facade. The proposed changes will enable the
building to be brought up to current life safety and accessnblllty standards, as
well as make the building viable for future tenants.

Building History:

The building was constructed in 1923 as a club building for the
Benevolent and Protective Order of the Elk (B.P.O.E.), a national fraternal
organization commonly referred to as the “Elk’s Club”. The lodge and its
membership became one of the states largest and most powerful secret
societies. The structure was originally constructed as the main clubhouse and
was originally (6) stories tall. The basement, lower level, contained a
gymnasium and mechanical support spaces, as well as the exclusionary
entrance to the building. The main level contained various meeting rooms,
offices and a library. The second level contained more meeting spaces and the
grand hall, which was an open two story area for large meetings and formal
events. The third, fourth and fifth levels were divided into private sleeping
rooms and bathroom:s. :

' During the great depression of the 1930’s membership greatly declined
and the building and its membership never regained the prominent standing
they once held. The organization defaulted on the bonds that made
construction possible and eventually the building was sold.

. The various owners, since that time, have struggled to lease the building.
They have made many major alterations and additions to the building. These
alterations include but are not limited to the following:

375 WEST 200 SOUTH 7291 GLENVIEW DRIVE
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84101 FORT WORTH, TX 76180

P 801.521.8600 P 817.589.1722 .
F 8015217913 . F 817.595.2816 wwwi.gshsarchitects.com



e The ballroom was converted into a theater then split by the construction

~an intermediary floor that connects to the 3% level,

. An additional floor and roof was constructed on top of the ballroom and

 connected via stairs to the fourth level.

o An additional floor and shallow roof were constructed on top of the fifth
top story using the original parapet walls with small rlbbon windows
above and sloped stucco to a new roof.

e . A two story addition has been added on the east side of the building
that extends to the property line. This space was intended to be used as
restaurant space and has been vacant for some time. The upper story
includes a-fiberglass sunroom and patio addition.

e A third story metal and glass enclosed walkway has been erected and
runs the entire east side of the building to provide a connection from the
building to a parking garage to the north.

e Almost all of the interior rooms and spaces on each story have been

- completely restructured to meet the needs of the various tenants that
have occupied the spaces.

Project Approach: .- ,

Various owners and tenants have tried to convert the building to meet
their needs and functions. These have included a movie theater, private
club, dinner/dance halls, restaurants and an office building. Each of these
attempts has been rather unsuccessful and further deteriorated the building
and its systems. The current owner appreciates the value of the existing
building.and intends to make improvements to the building and site that
will allow the building to meet today’s needs and those of the future. |

We are proposing a 30" wide addition on the east side of the building,
which will provide an additional 3,900 s.f. of floor space to each of the (6)
original building levels. At this time the proposed addition includes stone
cladding, brick and stucco with detailing sympathetic to the historical
detailing. The design is intended to blend with the original design rather
than to mimic its appearance. This new addition will assist with the
structural retrofit that will allow the building to carry the current structural
loads and meet life safety needs while protecting the building. The building
systems will be replaced to meet the current needs and demands of
modern tenants. Wiring and environmental systems struggle and cannot
meet the current demands. The building envelope needs to be tightened to
prevent excessive energy loss. :



Building interior circulation will'be improved to provide security and
meet modern day tenant demands. Due to lack of natural light and poor
access, the lower story (main entrance) is almost impossible to lease and
does not provide a suitable first impression for any modern day public
building. In the proposed design we will provide windows for natural light
and create a formal entrance lobby that is desperately needed to help this
building succeed. The exterior masonry facade facing the street will remain
intact and the cladding of the base will be limestone to match the historical
stone base on the original building. A new stair and elevator core will
provide accessibility to all stories and allow for the removal of modern
addition of an exterior egress stair on the west side of the building.

The site on the south and east sides of the building will be suitably
landscaped to create a visual as well as physical entrance to the new office
building directly of the sidewalk on South Temple.
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EGRESS CIRCULATION
[ | LEASE SPAGE
i [ ] sUPPORT SPACE
[ ] VERTICAL CIRCULATION
/AﬁNew Level 6 - Option 1
106 /1/8" = 1'-0"
139 East South Temple Building Addition and Remodel: Level 6 | 9/3/2009
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Researcher: Lois Harris : Site No.__SL 16 003
Date’ may 12, 1978 '

*Utah State Historical Society

Historic Preservation Research Office
Structure/Site Information Form

Street Address. 139 gacr Soutrh Temple Plat Bl. Lot
Name of Structure: gik's club ‘ : T. R. S.
Present Owner: Elk's Associates - UTM:

Owner Address:./; pevelopment Associates, 307 W. 200 S., SLC, Ut 841017ax#:

AGE/CONDITION/USE M IDENTIFICATION ==

Qriginal Owner: B.P.O.E. . Construction Date: 1993 Demolition Date:
Original Use: Clubhouse
Present Use:. ' o : ' Occupants:
0,Single-Family , ; O Park O Vacant )
O Multi-Family 1 Industrial : O Religious
0 Public 0O Agricuitural 00 Other
Commercial
Building Condition: Integrity:
O Excelient 0 Site 0 Unaitered
® Good O Ruins @B Minor Alterations
. O Deteriorated O Major Alterations )
#3  Preliminary Evaluation: Final Register Status:
, 0 Significant 0O National Landmark 0O District
Pt @ Contributory ] O National Register O Multi-Resource
'5 G Not Contributory ) O State Register 0 Thematic
» O Insrusion : '
4] Photography:
Date of Slides: . Date of Photographs:’
g Views: Front O Side & Rear O Other O Views: Front 8~ Side B Rear O Other &=
% Research Sources:
E O Abstract of Title 0 City Directories 00 LDS Church Archives
“E" 0O Plat Records - O Biographical Encyciopedias O LDS Genealogical Society
=) Q Plat Map O Obituary Index 0 Uof ULibrary
8 0O Tax Card & Photo 0 County & City Histories 0O BYU Library
= O Building Permit ) O Persond! Interviews O USU Library
O Sewer Permit * O Newspapers O SLC Library
0O Sanborn Maps . & Utah State Historical Society Library O Other

Bibliog raphical References (books, articles, records, interviews, old photographs and maps, etc.) .

Potential Sites File, USHS.




139 East South Temple-1923
Architect/Builder: o . . o4
Building Materials:  pressed brick Building Type/Style!  1.ie cothie—Revival

Description of physical appearance & significant architectural features:
(Include additions, alterations, ancillary structures, and landscaping if applicable)

See National Register nomination form (attached).
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=
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[&]
[+
=4

Originally this was a five story reinforced concrete structure with a full base-
ment, rectangular in plan. The exterior features a veneer of pressed, wire-brushed red
brick with cream terra cotta trim.

The basement originally contained a gymnasium as well as a refrigeration plant and
heating system. The main entrance was on South Temple Street and opened on to a foyer
and main lobby, 48 feet square. The lobby is done in square, marble—sheathed columns and
wainscoting and moulded ceiling cornices with gold leafing. :

The Elks Club building has recently undergone renovation. Much of the interior of
the building is intact. The upper floors have been converted to office space. An addi-
tional floor has been built on the roof, using metal-framed windows, above the parapet

~wall. A two story metal-framed glass enclosure has been added on the east facade of the
building. A new one story theater structure has also been added on the east side..

O Aboriginal Americans O Communication O Military O Religion

-0 Agriculiure O Conservation— 0 Mining : O Science

0O Architecture O Education . O Minority Groups 0O Socio-Humanitarian
O TheArts R O Exploration/Settlement O Political O Transportation

6 ' Statement of Historical Significance:

5o

[

o

o

T 0O Commerce . 0O Industry - ) O Recreation

This building is the largest club house ever built in the state of Utah. It was
the home of the Elk's Club, one of the largest non-Mormon clubs in Utah.

B B The Benevolent and Protective Order of Elk (B.P.0.E.) a national fratermal organi-
‘zation established under that name by Charles A. S. Vivian, in Chicago in 1878. Charles
Vivian was born in England and came to America in 1867, to persue a career in acting.
Vivian founded the "Jolly Corks'" in 1867, a fraternal organization which later became the
B.P.0.E. 1In 1888 Lodge No. 85 was established in Salt Lake City.

From 1888 to 1898 lodge membership remained small. When the lodge was reorganized
in 1899, membership increased and the lodge became one of the states largest and most
powerful secret societies.

The lodge's four key words were "Charity, Justice, Brotherly Love and Fidelity."

The Elks participated in many humanitarian projects, such as sending aid to the victims
of the Scofield mine disaster.

In 1902 the Elk's built a clubhouse on State Street and First South. The Elks
Club grew, in part because it was made up of non-Mormons who joined to ferdoff their
feelings of social isolation. This four story clubhouse served until the memberhip grew
to 3,400 in 1923.

: Their present lodge erected in 1923 was evidence to the fact that the Elks Club was
then at the height of its prominence. Their six story building was the largest club house
in Utah to date and has not been equalled since. It was also the largest structure buil

in Salt Lake City in the 1920's, a period of économic stagnation. The building cost
$300,000 to build. It was designed by Carl W. Scott and George W. Welsh who had worked for
Utah's famed architect, Richard K.A. Kletting. Scott and Welsh also designed South High
School and the Masonic Temple on South Temple Street. The building is now an office
building, housing a restaurant, a private club and a movie theatre. - .
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN} PHYSICALAPPEARANCE )

- As originally built in 1‘9.23,. the Elks Club was a five-story Structure with a fu1] .
basement. It stands in the middle of a lot, 181 by 198 feet on the north side of South
Terppg.e Street. Built to function as g clubhouse, the building is Tectangular in Plan and

- =~ ADTATY . writing—rooms > WOmen's Tounge, secretary’s office, private office and vauls
were located at the. South end-of the first floor. 4 dining room 32 by 64 feet, billiards
Toom 32 by 48 feet;-card _X0om, buffet and kitchen, check Toom and lavoratories were located
in the nQ_them;jiglf?ef:the"mafirf £1o0T:- - These Tooms remain, though thejr functions have
-Changed iy Some-cases. - = I —

Leading from%tﬁ'é*‘inai—'riiﬁliﬁr""rfo*the second floor jis z grand stairway, sheathed in
marble, The_second Vﬂo@griginally contained-a lodge room, eighty feet suare, with a

Seating capag':i;aﬁ;y;clf:&;,a’e%persons, -and g gallé:c‘y"c"apable of seating 200 Pe€rsons. The

- and a sloping floor. A collapsible stage was also an original feature, The second
floor also contained ten committee and candidate Trooms, a memorial Troom, and a lounging
room, 32 by 48 feet. . CoL

-

The third floor was conipris‘ed of .s.ixteen private sleeping and bath rooms for "transit
th - :

have Changed. The built-in cabinetry, leaded-glass windows, tall ceilings, ornamentai
beams and ceiling cornices, wood floors and paneling remain;intact. Over the new atrium

cut-out is a mirror and bands of ney lights--the only major alteration of the grand lobby
area. The gray marble stairway to the second floor remains. The lodge halil is completely

intact, though a curtained wall hag been placed down its center from front +g back,

The upper floors, which contained private sleeping rooms, have been converted to
office uses. Ap additional fldor has been built on the roof over the southernmost half
of the building. ' The addition utilizes the original parapet walls for its lower portion
Of wall and has metal -framed windows along the UPper portion of wall. ' The exterior
“9rnice of the addition consists of g flat, cream-colored Stucco band which angles back

“oward the inside of the building at the top. L
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A metal-framed glass enclosure, two-stories in height and containing a restaurant,
has been added to the lower portion of the eastern exterior wall of the Elk's Club. In
the course of making this addition, arched transoms and window bays in that section
of wall were either filled in or opened to provide access between the old and new parts
of the building. A new one-story theater structure and a concrete stairway have also

‘been added on the property east of the original building. The theater has a low profile

as it is set into the side of the hill upon which the Elk's Club stands.

The front facade of the Elk's Club has not changed in appearance since its initial
construction, except for the aforementioned addition. The facade consists of equal areas
of red brick and cream-colored terra cotta which together give striking contrast to the
design. Entirely symmetrical, the facade is seven bays wide. The first level features
Roman-arched bays with fanlight transoms, elk heads in the spandrel panels, console
keystones and a first story cornice band with an engaged balustrade.

The second Jevel consists of tall, narrow windows, with each of the seven bays being

ivided into three sections. - Cornice bands with coffered panels delineate each floor

“level. The fourth level window bays have rounded top cormers. Their mullions, like

those throughout the entire facade, are deep, allowing for recessed windows. The fifth
floor windows are the same as those found on the second and third levels. The heavy,
ornamental upper cornice features a frieze with elk symbols and flowers. Under the
Projecting cornice is a foliated soffit and an egg-and-dart band. The brick parapet
wall has a simple terra cotta coping. From the ground, the additional story is fairly
inconspicuous, the pattern of its mullions and glass not conflicting greatly with the
rhythm established by the bays below. ' o

The side walls of the Elk's Club have irregular window schedules featuring square
rectangular and round-arched windows placed in arrangements convenient to interiro
fenestration. A new metal stairway has been built up the west wall of the Elk's Club
near the southwest corner. ' '

Landscaping is a significant element of the-Elk's Club enviromment. Original features
include a decorative stone retaining wall which runs parallel with South Temple Strect.
A Roman-arched tunnel begins at the wall and leads to the basement floor of the building.
Two sets of exterior stairs rum over the top of the tumnel and join at a walkway which
leads to the first floor entrance. A carved stone elk head serves as a keystone piece
for the arched entry of the tunnel. A secondary stone retaining wall, complete with
outdoor urns, forms a small flat patio area from which the building rises.

A reinforced concrete parking structure has been built north of the Elk's Club. It is
out of view from South Temple Street but can be seen from First Avenue, the mext street
north.
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- STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Elks Club Building, erected in 1923 as a six-story concrete and brick fraternal
house with terra cotfta trim, documents the rise and influence of the B.P.0.E. in Utah
-during the early Twentieth Century. As its largely Gentilée™ (non-Mormon) membersh;v.p :

.. developed to fill the voids of social isolation, the Elks became one of the state's

. leading fraternal organizations or "secret societies" andlwer.e a positive force

- in furthering humanitarian causes in and out ‘of the state of Utah.” The Elks CIub™"
Building:was. fhe largest club building of any kind built in Utah. Its interesting
exterior facade continues to contribute visually to the special ambiance of Salt Lake

City's historic. South Temple Street. -

HISTORY:

The Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks (B.P.0.E.) a national fraternal
organization, was first established under that name by Charles A. S. Vivian in Chicago”
in 1878. Vivian was born in Exeter, Devonshire County, England, in 1846, his father
being a clergyman for the Church of England.  In 1867, Charles Vivian came to the :
United States to pursue a career in acting. He organized a théatre trdupe in San- |
Francisco and traveled across the nation, - gaining national acclaim. (He played the Tole
of "Admiral™ in the original Chicago production of Gilbert and Sullivan's "Pinafors' a:
McVickers Theatre in the fall of 1879 just before his death in 1880L)

It was in 1867 that Vivian first conceived the idea of organizing a society to

"promote, protect and ephance the welfare and happiness .of each other." He consequently
founded the 'Jolly Corks" which later became the Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks.

After being married in 1876, Vivian and his company traveled eastward from Eureka, .
Nevada, and "west directly to Salt Lake City, remaining some little time among the -
Mormons. Mr. Vivian organized a lodge there." The "lodge'" was one of Vivian's
“Jolly Corks' groups. - Interestingly, this Salt Lake City lodge is. the first one -
‘mentioned as being founded by Vivian anywhere in the United Stafes in A Biographical
Sketch of Charles A. S. Vivian; pethaps showing the early Utah acceptance of an i;
orgamzation which eventually obtained natiomwide popularity. The initial organization

“of ‘the B.P.0.E. in Utah occurred July 12, 1888, when Lodge No. 85 was estahlished in -
Salt Lake City with Martin McIvey as the first Exalted Ruler.

The period between 1888 to 1898 was a - difficult time for the lodge ahd its small ;
membership as activities related to rapid economic expansion competed for attention. In
1899, however, following a reorganization of the lodge, membership increased and the
fraternity became one of the state's mast powerful "secret societies.'

Actively pursuing the intent of its four keywords, "Charity, Justice, Brotherly
Love and Fidelity," the Elks participated in several humanitarian projects. In 1900 !
the lodge was among the first to send aid and relief to the unfortunates who suffered ‘
in the Scofield mine disaster. In 1906, the Salt Lake Lodge sent what was claimed to be
the first carload of food and medicines to Teach San Francisco at the time ::° the Great:

Fire began.
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In 1902, the Elks built an impressive four-story lodge house on State Street,

one-half block south of Brigham Young's Beehive House, Lion House, and the Eagle Gate.

It has been suggested that the eventual strength of the Elks organization in Utah

stemmed at least partially from a sense of socml isolation felt by Gentiles (non-Mormons)
* living in a Mormon-dominated society. The razing of Brigham Young's 'White House," a

historic site built in 1848 as the first house of "style'" in Utah, in favor.of the

construction of a larger Elks lodge in 1922-1923 symbolizes social and economic

inroads made by the Gentiles through the influential Lodge No. 8S5.

At the time the Elks Club Building was erected in 1923, membership of Lodge No. 85
had risen to 3,400 and several other lodges had been created statewide. The Elks were
at the height of their prominence as evidenced by the fact that their six-story
building was the largest club structure built in the state to that date and it has
not been equalled since. In addition, it was also the largest structure of any kind
built in Salt Lake City in the early 1920s, a period of economic stagnation.

Occupying a comranding position on an elevated piece of property on the high side
of Salt Lake City's historic South Temple Street, the Elks Building is architecturally
imposing. Its style does not fit neatly into a standard classification though the front
facade wj’.th its centrasting brick and terra cotta fabric and upward-reaching perpendicular
forms, partakes somewhat of Late Gothic Revival feeling. Built at a cost of $300,000.00,
‘the Elks Club has a reinforced concrete structure system and a classically appointed -
interior. The architects Carl W. Scott and George W. Welsh had both worked as engineers
for Richard K. A. Kletting, perhaps Utah's most gifted arch‘c@ect and a strong classicist,
before forming their own firm in 1915. Both architects assisted Kletting with design
work on the Utah State Capitol-in 1914, a Neo-Classical Revival structure, but turned to
more exotic styles such as the Second Egyptian Revival and Late Gothic Revival after
leaving Keltting's employ. - Among the best known works of the firm of Scott and Welsh
are the Masonic Temple and South High School. The firm dissolved in 1939 but exists -
today in refipant form under the name of Scott, Louie and Browning.
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